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December 5, 2022 VIA FIRST CLASS U.S. MAIL 

Dear Investor: 

I am required to file a report with the Court thirty days after the end of each calendar quarter.  

There are currently four Quarterly Reports on the Heartland Receivership website, which are 

accessible at no charge by visiting https://heartlandreceivership.com/receiver-reports.  Those 

reports are required to include certain information regarding the status of the cases and past 

activities.  My team has and will continue to respond to your inquiries regarding the information 

contained in those reports. 

 

In the past year, my team and I have focused on gaining an understanding of the assets owned or 

controlled by the parties to the Heartland Receivership.  Assets sold to date include a ranch, a 

house, and personal property, including, but not limited to, equipment, vehicles, sheep, goats, an 

airplane, and a helicopter.  Much, if not all, of the personal property with any significant value has 

been sold.  Three pieces of real property in Texas are also listed for sale.   

 

The oil and gas assets have been more complicated.  There were 403 wells located in Wichita, 

Hardeman, Stephens, Palo Pinto, Jack, Young, Sutton, Schleicher, Val Verde, and Crockett 

Counties.  We obtained Court approval to participate in an online auction for most of the wells 

(excluding Val Verde or Crockett Counties) in 8 packaged “lots”.  These wells also have associated 

potential liability related to “plugging and abandonment” (“P&A”) obligations.  Unfortunately, 

not all lots sold and those that did resulted in a bid generating a potential recovery of less than 

$600,000, not including assumption of P&A liability which would have reduced the claims against 

the receivership parties.  The Railroad Commission of Texas (the “RRC”) is required approve the 

transfer of the right to operate any well.  Even more unfortunately, the RRC has not approved the 

transfer of any right to operate any well.  In order to mitigate potential claims against the 

Receivership, I am seeking Court approval to abandon any well and related lease where, in my 

business judgment, a transfer will not be approved in the near future.  The only exception is the 

development in Val Verde and Crockett Counties, sometimes referred to as the West, Carson, 

and/or Childress leases.  Those wells are relatively new, and it is not yet clear whether there is any 

significant value in the leases.  We have obtained Court approval for a new operator to attempt to 

develop those leases and hopefully generate value for the investors. 

We have also begun to focus on prosecution of claims and causes of action that have the potential 

to generate a net recovery for the creditors.  With Court approval, I have engaged counsel to 

prosecute certain claims on a contingency fee basis.  In other words, while the receivership estates 
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are obligated to pay certain expenses, the payment of attorneys’ fees will be from any recovery in 

the litigation.  There is no expected resolution of any litigation in the next few months. 

 

The Initial Quarterly Report disclosed that we had identified and obtained $2,298,000 from various 

bank accounts.  By the most recent quarterly report, the amount of cash had increased to 

$6,247,616.70.  As of the date of this letter, cash on hand is over $9 million dollars.   

 

We will be seeking Court approval of a claims process and a distribution process.  Notice of those 

actions will be given to each investor who will have an opportunity to review and, if you deem it 

appropriate, object if we are unable to reach an agreement. 

 

As part of the claims process, you will be provided with a proposed amount of your claim or 

claims.  As is common in cases such as these, that claim amount will be calculated based on the 

amount received by a Heartland entity less amounts paid to you. 

 

The claims of investors has been estimated to be over $120 million dollars.  At this time, we do 

not have the resources to make a significant distribution.  I believe it is, however, important to 

begin the claims and distribution process with the hope of additional distributions as we continue 

to liquidate assets and claims of the receivership parties.    

 

Please continue to check the Receivership website (www.heartlandreceivership.com) for our 

frequent updates to the Key Court Documents, Notices, and Reports pages and Frequently Asked 

Questions. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

DEBORAH D. WILLIAMSON, RECEIVER 

 

 
 

Deborah D. Williamson 
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